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progress” and are “much freer than

before.” Future research could keep close

track of the latest “reforms,” investigating

the processes and forces behind these

developments, as well as their implications

for the media’s development. Such

research could also explore more broadly

how the party-state, with its monopoly on

power, is capable of continually attaining

ever greater refinement in its exercise of

absolute control, clearly an issue with sig-

nificant implications.

Another topic for further exploration

would be the working environment of inter-

national correspondents within China, a

topic given close attention in Media Control

in China. As China is drawn ever further into

globalization, its interactions with the world

grow ever deeper and more complex; as

global trends make it increasingly difficult

for China to refuse at least a limited

amount of international investment in its

media industry, some so-called joint ven-

ture media bodies are gradually beginning

to appear (He Qinglian has an entire chap-

ter exploring this phenomenon); and as

China’s economic strength continues to

grow, the Chinese party-state’s ability to

infiltrate and expand into overseas media

continues to grow correspondingly. While

its sights may be initially set on interna-

tional Chinese-language media, its aspira-

tions do not stop there: a new media-control

machine for the Chinese party-state under

globalization is materializing before us, with

a completely new and expanded scope,

strength, and skills. Any one of its many

control mechanisms could easily qualify as

a new academic frontier awaiting further

exploration.

Finally, another topic with great poten-

tial would be the continual development of

new Internet technologies and their expan-

sion throughout China. The resulting

spread of information across borders and

its effects have just begun to be felt. He

Qinglian has two chapters dedicated to dis-

cussing these developments, but this is a

particularly broad topic worthy of a book of

its own.

In conclusion,Media Control in China is a

piece of brilliant scholarship, but this does

not mean that the topics He Qinglian has

explored would not benefit from further

investigation. On the contrary, this book

could open up a variety of new research

fields, directions and quandaries for further

exploration: and this is, after all, precisely

what a groundbreaking work such asMedia

Control in China is supposed to do.

Translated by Kevin Carrico

The longer Chinese version of this article

was published in Modern China Studies,

No. 4, 2006, http://www.chinayj.net/

StubArticle.asp?issue=060405&total=95

<http://www.chinayj.net/StubArticle.asp?

issue=060405&amp;total=95> .

NOTE
1. Wusuo Zhongguo is an updated and expanded

version of Media Control in China (Zhongguo

zhengfu yuhe kongzhi meiti), which was pub-

lished by Human Rights in China in August

2003.

Books in Brief

The Global Workplace:

International and Comparative Employ-

ment Law—Cases and Materials

Roger Blanpain, Susan Bisom-Rapp,

William R. Corbett, Hilary K. Josephs,

Michael J. Zimmer

Cambridge University Press

2007, no price given

This casebook uses globalization as the

backdrop to its examination of labor and

employment law in nine countries—the

U.S., Canada, Mexico, the UK, Germany,

France, China, Japan and India. The section

on China, by Syracuse University’s Hilary K.

Josephs, includes an article originally pub-

lished in China Rights Forum, “The WTO and

Chinese Labor Rights.”

Power Shift: China and Asia’s New Dynam-

ics

David Shambaugh, ed.

University of California Press

2006, $60 (hardcover), $24.95 (paper-

back)

A broad range of international experts and

scholars examine China’s growing eco-

nomic and political influence and its impact

on regional security. In their analysis of

China’s regional strategy, they present a

picture of China at the center of an increas-

ingly interdependent web of Asian states

and non-state actors.

Resource List:
China and the World

COMPILED BY JOVY CHAN, CLIFF IP

AND WING LAM WITH SI-SI LIU

This resource list provides a brief directory

of information related to China’s interna-

tional diplomacy and its human rights impli-

cations, arranged by region: Africa, Asia,

Europe, North America and South America.

For some regions, the list is subdivided into

categories including: Web Resources, online

information from NGOs and governments;

Books, recommended readings for further

in-depth analyses; and Articles and Reports,

opinions and findings from scholars, think

tanks and international organizations.

General Resources

Council on Foreign Relations

http://www.cfr.org/about/

English

This Web site includes transcripts of the

think-tank’s on-the-record meetings and

briefings, books by scholars, back-

grounders on a variety of issues, op-eds

and journal articles.

AccessMyLibrary

http://www.accessmylibrary.com

English

This free and resource-rich search engine

on bilateral ties covers more than 4,000

journals and newspapers worldwide. Its

archive contains more than 5,000 articles

related to China.

Bilaterals.org

http://www.bilaterals.org

English, German, French, Spanish, Dutch,

Portuguese

Bilaterals.org is a collective effort of infor-

mation sharing on bilateral free trade and

investment agreements. Its three main sec-

tions—news & analysis about specific

negotiations; analyses of key thematic

issues; and access to the texts of bilateral

treaties—all contain materials on China’s

bilateral ties with specific countries and

regional bodies.
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Third World Network

http://www.twnside.org.sg

English

This Web site, operated by a non-profit

international network of organizations and

individuals involved in issues related to the

developing countries, contains articles and

papers on multilateral thematic issues

such as the United Nations (UN) and the

World Trade Organization (WTO).

China-Africa

WEB RESOURCES

Government Resources

China’s African Policy

http://www.fmprc.gov.cn/eng/zxxx/t2306

15.htm

English, Chinese, French, Spanish, Arabic

This page on the Web site operated by

China’s Ministry of Foreign Affairs (MFA)

includes China’s official position on Africa,

outlining key official objectives and pro-

posed measures for implementation.

Forum on China-Africa Cooperation

http://www.fmprc.gov.cn/zflt/eng/

English, Chinese, French

This page on the MFA Web site is dedicated

to the Forum as a platform for China and

partner African countries to seek coopera-

tion and mutual benefit. The First Ministerial

Conference was held in Beijing in October

2000. Subsequent conferences were held

in December 2003 in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia,

and November 2006 in Beijing.

See also:

Beijing Summit & Third Ministerial

Conference of Forum on China-Africa

Cooperation

http://english.focacsummit.org/

English, Chinese, French

This is the official Web site of the Third Min-

isterial Conference held on November 4–5,

2006 in Beijing.

Forum on China-Africa Cooperation-Beijing

Action Plan, 2007-2009

http://www.fmprc.gov.cn/zflt/eng/zyzl/hyw

j/t280369.htm

English

Published on November 16, 2006, this

statement sets forth a framework for trade

and assistance between China and Africa

for 2007–2009.

Other Resources

All Africa

http://www.allafrica.com

English, French

This news content Web site provides

access to reports from more than 125

African news organizations and 200 other

sources, with more than 4,000 news arti-

cles pertaining to China and Africa.

Africa Files

http://www.africafiles.org/

English, French

This Web site’s Africa InfoServ program

provides reports, analyses and opinions on

current events, issues and regional

themes in Africa. Topics include human

rights, economic justice, environmental

sustainability and human security. The

archive includes news and articles on

China-Africa relationship.

BOOKS

Draper, Peter and Garth le Pere, eds. Enter

the Dragon - Towards a Free Trade Agree-

ment Between China and the Southern

African Customs Union. Cape Town: South

African Institute of International Affairs,

2005.

This book offers an analysis of the critical

issue on the development of a free trade

agreement between China and the South-

ern African Custom Union (SACU). Most of

the book’s essays are drawn from a 2004

conference that brought together

researchers, policy-makers and business

representatives to discuss China’s eco-

nomic rise and its effects on the South

African and SACU economies.

Goldstein, Andrea, Nicolas Pinaud, Helmut

Reisen and Xiaobao Chen. The Rise of

China and India: What’s in It for Africa?

Paris: OECD Development Centre, 2006.

The authors examine how the growing eco-

nomic power of China and India has already

influenced the growth patterns of African

countries. This book also analyzes how

China’s and India’s increasing economic

engagement in Africa is leading some

African countries to redirect part of their

trade and bilateral ties from traditional

OECD partners to China and India, and

explores the consequences of this change.

ARTICLES

Alden, Chris. “Leveraging the Dragon:

Toward ‘An Africa That Can Say No’.” eAfrica

via YaleGlobal Online, March 1, 2005.

http://yaleglobal.yale.edu/article.print?

id=5336

This article examines how African govern-

ments could learn from China’s path of eco-

nomic liberalization. Alden believes that

African countries need not assume a sec-

ondary position in their dealings with

China, and that effective diplomacy will be

crucial to ensure the balance of economic

and strategic interests as Africa’s relations

with China grow.

Eisenman, Joshua and Joshua Kurlantzick.

“China’s Africa Strategy.” Current History

(May 2006), 219–224.

http://www.afpc.org/china-africa.shtml

The authors explore China’s access to

Africa through trade, arms sales and

“unconditional” financial assistance. The

article argues that the strategy sets a poor

example for good governance and democra-

tization, and that China’s growing engage-

ment in Africa should sound a clear wakeup

call for the U.S. and its recent neglect of

African governments in UN forums.

Pan, Esther. “Backgrounder: China, Africa,

and Oil.” Council on Foreign Relations, Janu-

ary 26, 2007.

http://www.cfr.org/publication/9557/

The author explores China’s demand for

energy resources from African oil-supplying

countries, highlighting the link between oil

production and arms sales. The article also

examines China’s impact on the continent

and presents a balanced overview of differ-

ent assessments of this engagement.

South African Journal of International

Affairs—China in Africa 13, no.1 (Sum-

mer/Autumn 2006).

http://www.saiia.org.za/modules.php?op=

modload&name=News&file=article&sid=

961

This entire issue of the Journal focuses on

the relationship between China and Africa

through articles examining a wide range of

topics, including an analysis of the relation-
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ship from China’s point of view, and a pro-

file of China’s multinational operations on

the continent.

REPORTS

Broadman, Harry G. Africa’s Silk Road:

China and India’s New Economic Frontier.

The World Bank, 2007.

http://siteresources.worldbank.org/AFRIC

AEXT/Resources/Africa_Silk_Road.pdf

This new World Bank report studies the rap-

idly growing economic involvement of China

and India in Africa and provides systematic

empirical data on how Chinese and Indian

firms operate on the continent. The report

identifies the asymmetry in economic rela-

tions between the two continents as a

major problem.

Gill, Bates, Chin-Hao Huang, and J. Stephen

Morrison. China’s Expanding Role in Africa:

Implications for the United States. Center

for Strategic and International Studies,

2007.

http://www.csis.org/media/csis/pubs/

chinainafrica.pdf

This report identifies key factors that frame

China’s state-centric approach to Africa.

China’s comparative advantage over the

West’s relationship with Africa lies in its

unique historical experience and develop-

ment model, based on its history of amica-

ble political linkages with Africa as a

durable foundation for a future strategic

partnership.

On Becoming a Chinese Colony. Sokwanele

Special Report, June 21, 2005.

http://www.sokwanele.com/articles/

sokwanele/onbecomingachinesecolony_

21june2005.html

This report examines why Zimbabwe has

turned to China to counterbalance influ-

ences from western-oriented economies,

as well as China‘s interests in Zimbabwe

and how the China-Zimbabwe bilateral rela-

tionship protects Zimbabwe’s ruling govern-

ment from strict international scrutiny over

human rights abuses.

China-Asia

WEB RESOURCES

Association of Southeast Asian Nations

(ASEAN)

http://www.aseansec.org/

English

Official Web site of ASEAN, a regional coop-

eration organization composed of Brunei

Darussalam, Cambodia, Indonesia, Laos,

Malaysia, Myanmar, Philippines, Singapore,

Thailand and Vietnam. Established on

August 8, 1967, ASEAN aims to accelerate

regional economic growth, social progress

and cultural development, and to promote

regional peace and stability. While China is

not a member state of ASEAN, it partici-

pates in ASEAN Plus Three ministerial-level

meetings, along with Japan and the Repub-

lic of Korea, on security, trade and econom-

ics, and socio-cultural issues.

Shanghai Cooperation Organization (SCO)

http://www.sectsco.org/

Chinese, English, Russian

Official Web site of the SCO, an intergovern-

mental organization founded on June 14,

2001, by the leaders of China, Russia,

Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Tajikistan and

Uzbekistan. The SCO’s stated purposes

are: strengthening mutual trust and rela-

tions among member states; promoting

their cooperation in political affairs, econ-

omy and trade, science, technology, culture,

education, energy, transportation, tourism

and environment protection; safeguarding

regional peace, security and stability; and

striving for the creation of a democratic and

just international political and economic

order.

BOOKS

Byman, Daniel, and Roger Cliff. China’s

Arms Sales: Motivations and Implications.

Rand, 1999.

http://www.rand.org/pubs/monograph_rep

orts/MR1119/

This book examines the impact of China’s

transfer of missiles and nuclear, biological

and chemical technologies to countries such

as Iran, Iraq,Myanmar,North Korea, Pakistan

and Thailand. The article further analyses

China’s arm sales behavior and the threat

posed to the U.S. and other countries.

ARTICLES

Chung, Chien-Peng. “The Defense of Xin-

jiang.” Harvard International Review 25,

no. 2 (2003): 58–62.

While the Shanghai Cooperation Organiza-

tion calls for closer cooperation on politi-

cal, economic and security issues, the

author argues that China actually wants to

use the SCO to strengthen its political, eco-

nomic and security position in the Xinjiang

Uyghur Autonomous Region.

Davis, Kathleen. “Brides, Bruises and the

Border: The Trafficking of North Korean

Women into China.” SAIS Review 26, no.1

(2006): 131–141.

This article examines the trafficking of North

Korean women into China, where promises

of jobs or husbands often turn into domestic

violence or forced employment in the sex

industry. The author urges the governments

of both countries to comply with interna-

tional human rights norms on trafficking,

and for the international community to

increase pressure on the two governments.

Economy, Elizabeth. “China’s Rise in South-

east Asia: Implications for the United

States.” Journal of Contemporary China 14,

no. 44 (2005): 409–425.

This article examines China’s increasing

economic success and greater role on the

international stage, especially within South-

east Asia, where increasing Chinese activ-

ity is met with both enthusiasm and

trepidation by the U.S. and throughout

Asia. The article concludes that shared

leadership within Southeast Asia in the

near future will oblige China to assume

more of the social and political burden that

leadership entails.

Frost, Stephen, and Mary Ho. “‘Going Out’:

The Growth of Chinese Foreign Direct

Investment in Southeast Asia and its Impli-

cations for Corporate Social Responsibil-

ity.” Corporate Social Responsibility and

Environmental Management 12, no. 3

(2005): 157–167.

This paper is a preliminary assessment of

the implications of China’s investments, in

particular the effect on sanctions designed

to improve human rights, and whether pres-

sure can be maintained on foreign

investors to comply with international stan-

dards and norms.
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Gladney, Dru C. “China’s Uyghur Problem

and the Shanghai Cooperation

Organization.” U.S.-China Economic &

Security Review Commission Washington,

August 3, 2006.

http://www.uscc.gov/hearings/2006

hearings/written_testimonies/06_08_3_4

wrts/06_08_3_4_gladney_dru_

statement.php

This paper examines China’s relationship

with the Uyghur population of the Xinjiang

Uyghur Autonomous Region; the role played

by the SCO on this issue; and post-Soviet

border issues in Central Asia, including

security, trade, environmental degradation,

energy and smuggling. It concludes that the

SCO has shown little evidence of growing

into a fully-fledged regional cooperation

organization since its establishment in

2000.

Jin, Liangxiang. “Sino-Arab Relations: New

Developments and Trends.” Middle East Pol-

icy 11, no. 4 (2004): 113–121.

This article examines the development of

Sino-Arab relations following high-level bilat-

eral exchanges in 2004, and the political

and economic implications stemming from

these bilateral ties.

Pan, Esther. “China and Pakistan: A Deep-

ening Bond.” Council on Foreign Relations

Backgrounder, March 8, 2006.

http://www.cfr.org/publication/10070/

china_and_pakistan.html

This backgrounder examines the reasons

for and the consequences of closer bilat-

eral ties between China and Pakistan in

tandem with the warming relations between

the U.S. and India.

Sheives, Kevin. “China Turns West: Bei-

jing’s Contemporary Strategy Towards Cen-

tral Asia.” Pacific Affairs 79, no. 2 (2006):

205–226.

This article examines China’s relations with

Uzbekistan, Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan and

Tajikistan, and analyzes the related foreign

policy concerns of regional stability, energy

security, and stable U.S.-China relations. It

concludes that China’s access to Central

Asia through the SCO is primarily motivated

by concerns of regional stability, energy

security and its geopolitical positioning with

the U.S.

Zissis, Carin. “China’s Relationship with a

Nuclear North Korea.” Council on Foreign

Relations. Backgrounder, October 24, 2006.

http://www.cfr.org/publication/11791/

This article explores the nature of the

alliance between China and North Korea

following the nuclear test conducted by

North Korea on October 9, 2006, and out-

lines the policy dilemmas, as well as the

role of the U.S., in Sino-DPRK relations.

China-Europe

WEB RESOURCES

Government Resources

China-EU Association (CEUA)

http://en.ceua.org/

English, Chinese

Approved by the State Council of China,

CEUA’s goal is to promote ties between

China, the EU and its member states

through international exchange and cooper-

ation. The CEUA Web site provides official

information and news on China-EU trade,

commerce, culture, science, education, gov-

ernment and NGOs operating in China.

China’s EU Policy Paper

http://www.fmprc.gov.cn/eng/zxxx/t2770

8.htm

English, Chinese, French, Spanish, Arabic

This official MFA Web page outlines China’s

EU policy and the roadmap for bilateral

cooperation for 2003-2008.

Delegation of the European Commission

to China

http://www.delchn.ec.europa.eu/

English, Chinese

The Delegation’s goal is to widen, deepen

and intensify cooperation between the EU

and China, and to conduct official relations

between China and the European Commis-

sion. This Web site provides information on

specific EU-China projects.

Europa—The EU’s Relations with China

http://ec.europa.eu/comm/external_rela-

tions/china/intro/index.htm

English

Europa, the Web portal of the EU, provides

specific coverage on the EU’s China policy,

covering various aspects of this bilateral

relationship, such as political and human

rights dialogues, economic and trade sta-

tistics, cooperation and agreements. It also

contains press releases, country strategy

papers, and information on summits and

delegations. The Web site includes a spe-

cific Web page for the EU-China Summit,

http://ec.europa.eu/comm/external_

relations/china/summit/index.htm, held

for the first time in London on April 2, 1998

in London. The Web page contains a collec-

tion of documents including joint state-

ments and memorandum of understanding

since the Fourth summit in 2001. Another

Web page, “Communication between the

Commission of the European Communities

and the European Parliament: EU-China:

Closer Partners; Growing Responsibilities,”

http://ec.europa.eu/comm/external_

relations/china/docs/06-10-24_final_com.

pdf, outlines the EU’s fundamental

approach of engagement and partnership

in response to China’s economic and politi-

cal development.

EU-China European Studies Centres

Programme (ESCP)

http://www.escp.com.cn/

English, Chinese

The ESCP is a collaborative initiative

funded by the Chinese government and the

EU to support the continued and sustain-

able development of European Studies in

China’s higher education. The ESCP Web

site contains relevant news and links to a

variety of Chinese and European educa-

tional and academic institutions.

EU-China Information Society Project

http://www.eu-china-infso.org/

English, Chinese

The EU-China Information Society project is

a joint initiative between the Chinese gov-

ernment and the EU. Started in July 2005,

this 4-year project aims to promote eco-

nomic and social reforms in China through

exchanges in information society and tech-

nology on regulations, e-government,

capacity building and online knowledge

transfer issues.

Other Resources

EU China News

http://eupolitics.einnews.com/news/eu-

china-relations

English

Operated by the data search service
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provider Internet Product Development

Group, this Web site contains specific

updates on EU-China relations pulled from

online news services.

EurActiv.com

http://www.euractiv.com/en/HomePage

English, French, German

EurActiv.com is an independent Web por-

tal dedicated to news on EU affairs. Its

database system provides online linkages

between relevant documents and policy

positions, and contains more than 300

news reports and articles on China and

the EU.

European Affairs

http://www.europeanaffairs.org/index.html

English

Produced by The European Institute, this

Web site covers issues surrounding EU

trade, financial and monetary affairs, infor-

mation technology, European security,

defense, NATO, European Union enlarge-

ment, environment and energy, and con-

tains more than 100 articles related to the

U.S., EU and China.

European Institute for Asian Studies

(EIAS)

http://www.eias.org/

English

EIAS is a Brussels-based policy and

research think-tank supported by the EU,

which aims to promote the understanding

and cooperation between the EU and Asia,

including China. EIAS provides up-to-date

materials on EU-Asia relations and key

developments in Asia for EU institutions,

academia and businesses.

European Training and Research Centre

for Human Rights and Democracy (ETC)

http://www.etc-graz.at/typo3/index.php?

id=16

English, German

Established in 1999, the ETC is a non-profit

association that conducts research and

training programs on human rights, democ-

racy and the rule of law in cooperation with

the University of Graz for civil servants,

police and military personnel, as well as

members of international organizations and

NGOs in Austria and other countries, includ-

ing China.

Irish Centre for Human Rights (ICHR)

http://www.nuigalway.ie/human_rights/

English

Linked with the National University of Ire-

land, ICHR is dedicated to the study and

promotion of human rights and humanitar-

ian law, with projects focused on China-

Europe relations. These include: the

Ireland-China Human Rights Academic

Exchange and the EU-China Network for the

Ratification and Implementation of the UN

Covenants.

Raoul Wallenberg Institute of Human

Rights and Humanitarian Law (RWI)

http://www.rwi.lu.se/index.shtml

English

Established in 1984 at the University of

Lund, Sweden, the RWI is an independent

academic institution dedicated to the pro-

motion of human rights through research,

training and education. In the mid-1990s it

began a cooperation with China aimed at

strengthening the promotion and protection

of human rights within different public

authorities and academic institutions.

BOOKS

Hoogmartens, Jan. EC Trade Law Following

China’s Accession to the WTO. The Hague:

Kluwer. Law International, 2004.

China joined the WTO in 2001 after 15

years of negotiations for membership. This

book examines the complex issues that

have arisen between China’s planned econ-

omy and European Community trade policy

instruments. Within the scope of interna-

tional trade, the author also focuses on

China’s continuing legal reforms, the role of

the rule of law in trade regulations, and the

translatability of Western social and politi-

cal institutions to China.

Shan, Wenhua. The Legal Framework of EU-

China Investment Relations: A Critical

Appraisal. Oxford: Hart Publishing, 2005.

This book assesses the existing legal

framework governing EU-China investment

relations. The author criticizes the unsys-

tematic nature of Chinese law and finds

applicable international treaties to be inad-

equate, and advocates a new international

legal framework for foreign investment in

China.

ARTICLES

Berkofsky, Axel. “Europe Gets Tough on

China.” Far Eastern Economic Review 170.

no.1 (2007):42–44.

This article reviews the impact of the latest

EU China Strategy Paper presented in Octo-

ber 2006 and argues that it will lead to read-

justment of China’s relations with the EU.

Gosset, David. “Building a New World

Order.” Beijing Review 48, no.37 (2005).

http://www.bjreview.cn/EN/En-2005/

05-37-e/viewpoint.htm

The author examines the increasingly inter-

dependent trilateral relationship between

the EU, China and the U.S. and argues that

it is affecting all other world groupings and

strategic partnerships.

Jing, Men. “Chinese Perceptions of the

European Union: A Review of Leading Chi-

nese Journals.” European Law Journal 12,

no. 6 (2006):788–806.

This article examines other journal articles

that focus on the EU, and particularly the

EU-China relationship, that have been pub-

lished in leading Chinese journals during

the past five years. Through this analysis,

the article presents an overview of how Chi-

nese scholars perceive the EU and its

global role, as well as the EU-U.S. and EU-

China bilateral ties.

Solana, Javier. “Driving the EU-China Strate-

gic Partnership Forward.” Hampton Roads

International Security Quarterly October 15,

2005: 37–39.

This article analyzes how China and the

EU can work together for international sta-

bility to address the issue of Iran’s nuclear

program.

China-South America

WEB RESOURCES

China-South America Friendship

Association

http://www.aachila.com/content/index.asp

Chinese, Spanish

Established in 1960, the China-South

America Friendship Association is com-

prised of 15 Chinese organizations, includ-

ing the government-led trade union, cultural
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groups, academic groups and NGOs. Its

goal is to promote social, cultural and eco-

nomical exchanges between China and

Latin America.

Institute of Latin America Studies (ILAS)

of the Chinese Academy of Social

Sciences (CASS)

http://ilas.cass.cn/

English, Chinese, Spanish

Established in July 1961, the ILAS aims to

advance China’s research on Latin Ameri-

can affairs and promote academic achieve-

ments in scientific research. Its Web site

contains news on countries in Latin Amer-

ica, publications on Latin America by CASS,

and links to China’s embassies and con-

sulates in the region.

ARTICLES

Domínguez, Jorge I., “China’s Relations

with Latin America: Shared Gains, Asym-

metric Hopes.” Inter-American Dialogue

China Working Paper, June 2006.

http://www.thedialogue.org/publications/

2006/summer/china.pdf

This paper examines the evolution of

China’s role in the Americas in recent

decades with an emphasis on its bilateral

ties with key countries in the region such as

Brazil, Argentina, Chile, Mexico, Venezuela

and Cuba.

Ho, Xuan-Trang. “China’s Burgeoning Role

in Latin America—a Threat to the U.S.?”

Council on Hemisphere Affairs via Political

Affairs, February 24, 2005.

http://www.politicalaffairs.net/article/

articleview/712/1/78/

This article outlines how China’s economic

growth and engagement in Latin America,

part of its “peaceful rise” policy of assis-

tance to Latin American developing

nations, poses challenges to traditional

U.S. influence in the region.

Jiang, Shixue. “A New Look at the Chinese

Relations with Latin America.” Nueva

Sociedad Web site.

http://www.nuso.org/upload/articulos/

3351_2.pdf

This paper examines Sino-Latin American

relations in the economic, political and aca-

demic realms. Despite the concern of the

U.S. and the recognition of Taiwan by some

Latin American countries, the author

argues that the bilateral relationship will

become stronger in the future.

Jiang, Shixue. “Income Distribution in Latin

America and East Asia, Economic Develop-

ment and Integration in Asia and Latin

America.” Paper presented at the Latin

America and Asia-Pacific Economics and

Business Association Conference, Tokyo,

September 29-30, 2003.

http://www.adbi.org/files/2003.09.29.cm

ats.laeba.shixue.paper.pdf

This paper outlines the possible causes of

income disparity in Latin America and East

Asia before the 1990s. It discusses the

economic and social impacts of varying

income distribution, with a particular focus

on China.

Mitchell, Derek and Chietigj Bajpaee.

”China and Latin America.” China Balance

Sheet Web site, July 2006.

http://www.chinabalancesheet.org/

Documents/Paper_Latin_America.PDF

This paper examines China’s growing eco-

nomic engagement with Latin America for

its natural resources and the region’s need

for cheap Chinese manufactured goods.

The authors also analyze how this eco-

nomic relationship has facilitated the Sino-

Latin American political relationship.

Watson, Cynthia A. “A Panda in the Neigh-

bourhood: China’s Evolving Involvement in

Latin America.” Institute for National Strate-

gic Studies Web site. Paper presented at

the National Defense University Pacific

Symposium “China’s Global Activism: Impli-

cations for U.S. Security Interests,” Wash-

ington, D.C. June 20, 2006.

http://www.ndu.edu/inss/symposia/pacifi

c2006/watsonpaper.pdf

This paper outlines the current state of

China’s involvement in Latin America and

Latin American governments’ reactions to

this evolving relationship. The paper con-

cludes with an assessment of the implica-

tions for U.S. security and options available

to the U.S.

China-North America

WEB RESOURCES

Government Resources

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights,

and Labor (DRL) at the U.S. Department

of State

http://www.state.gov/g/drl/

English

DRL is responsible for promoting democ-

racy worldwide, formulating U.S. human

rights policies, and coordinating policy on

human rights-related labor issues. It

reports annually on human rights in coun-

tries around the world, including China, with

regard to religious freedom and human

rights. It also administers the U.S. Human

Rights and Democracy Fund.

Congressional-Executive Commission

on China (CECC)

http://www.cecc.gov/

English

Created by U.S. Congress in October 2000,

the CECC has a mandate to monitor human

rights and the development of the rule of

law in China and to submit an annual report

to the President and the Congress. In 2006

it focused on freedom of expression.

Congressional Human Rights Caucus

(CHRC)

http://lantos.house.gov/HoR/CA12/

Human+Rights+Caucus

English

Founded in 1983, the CHRC plays a vital role

in addressing human rights concerns in the

U.S. Congress by regularly holding briefings

and welcoming high-profile leaders from

around the world to address human rights

concerns. A major concern is human rights

and internet censorship in China.

Foreign Affairs and International Trade

Canada (DFIAT)

http://geo.international.gc.ca/asia/main/

china/bilateral-en.asp

English, French

DFIAT is an executive branch of the Cana-

dian government that funds development

projects of various types in China. DFIAT

takes the lead in coordinating activities of

the Canada-China Joint Committee on

Human Rights, prominent in Canada’s bilat-

eral human rights engagement with China.
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Rights and Democracy (International

Centre for Human Rights and Democratic

Development)

http://www.dd-rd.ca/site/

English, French, Spanish

Rights and Democracy (International Centre

for Human Rights and Democratic Develop-

ment) is a non-partisan organization with

an international mandate, established by

Canada’s Parliament in 1988 to encourage

and support the promotion of human rights

and democratic institutions and practices

around the world. Human Rights in China

works with Rights and Democracy on

issues relating to China.

Subcommittee on International Human

Rights (SDIR)

http://cmte.parl.gc.ca/cmte/Committee-

Home.aspx?Lang=1&PARLSES=391&JNT=

0&SELID=e17_&COM=10945

English, French

The SDIR was created under the Standing

Committee on Foreign Affairs and Interna-

tional Development at the House of Com-

mons of Canada and focuses on human

rights issues around the world. Since Octo-

ber 2006, the Subcommittee has met regu-

larly to study and discuss issues on human

rights in China.

Non-Governmental Organizations

The Asia Foundation

http://www.asiafoundation.org/index.html

English

A non-profit NGO that seeks to advance the

mutual interests of the U.S. and the Asia-

Pacific region, the Asia Foundation sup-

ports programs in Asia on governance, law,

civil society, women’s empowerment, eco-

nomic reform and development and interna-

tional relations.

Asia Pacific Foundation of Canada

http://www.asiapacific.ca/about/index.cfm

English, French

The Asia Pacific Foundation of Canada is an

independent, not-for-profit think tank on

Canada’s relations with Asia. It promotes

dialogue on economic, security, political

and social issues, and its Web site offers a

wide range of information, analysis, statis-

tics, news and Internet links detailing

Canada’s economic, political and social

relations with the Asia Pacific region.

The Dui Hua Foundation

http://www.duihua.org/

English

The Dui Hua Foundation (“dui hua” means

“dialogue” in Chinese) is a non-profit organ-

ization dedicated to advancing the protec-

tion of human rights by means of a

well-informed dialogue conducted between

the U.S. and China. The foundation moni-

tors mainland Chinese publications to

uncover and report cases of Chinese citi-

zens detained for the non-violent expres-

sion of their political and religious rights.

Human Rights in China (HRIC)

http://www.hrichina.org

English, Chinese

Founded in 1989, Human Rights in China is

an international Chinese NGO with a mis-

sion to promote international human rights

and advance the institutional protection of

these rights in China. The organization is

headquartered in New York, with additional

offices in Hong Kong and Brussels.

BOOKS

Bergsten, C. Fred, Bates Gill, Nicholas R.

Lardy and Derek J. Mitchell. China: The Bal-

ance Sheet: What the World Needs to Know

Now about the Emerging Superpower. New

York: Public Affairs, 2006.

This book documents the findings of a multi-

year project by the Centre for Strategic and

International Studies and Institute for Inter-

national Economics to examine the dynam-

ics underpinning China’s rise. It outlines

policy options to further China’s constructive

integration into the international community

as well as its interaction with the U.S.

Suettinger, Robert. Beyond Tiananmen: The

Politics of U.S.-China Relations 1989–2000.

Washington, DC: Brookings Institution

Press, 2004.

This book argues that the Tiananmen inci-

dent caused Sino-American relations to

shift overnight from “amity and strategic

cooperation to hostility, distrust, and mis-

understanding,” and that the legacy of Tian-

anmen continues to undermine relations

between the two countries.

ARTICLES

Drury, Cooper, and Li Yitan. “U.S. Economic

Sanction Threats Against China: Failing to

Leverage Better Human Rights.” Foreign

Policy Analysis 2, no. 4 (October 2006):

307–24.

This paper quantifies U.S. threats to revoke

or attach conditions to China’s most

favored nation status and shows that the

tactic was both ineffective and counterpro-

ductive—Chinese accommodations

decreased when the U.S. made acute

threats but increased when Washington

was cooperative. It concludes that sanction

threats tend to be ineffective on salient

issues such as human rights.

Evans, Paul. “Canada, Meet Global China.”

International Journal (Spring 2006): 283–97.

http://www.asiapacific.ca/analysis/pubs/

speeches/china_sp_spring06.pdf

This article examines the impact on

Canada of the rise of an economically pow-

erful China and the ways in which Canada

has responded to this new relationship.

The author points out that previous Cana-

dian governments have not stressed

human rights issues for fear of harming

“high level contacts that have been the

centerpiece of diplomatic and commercial

engagement.”

REPORTS

U.S.-China Economic and Security Review

Commission. “Report to Congress of the

U.S.-China Economic and Security Review

Commission, 2006.” October 30, 2006.

http://www.uscc.gov/annual_report/2006/

annual_report_full_06.pdf

This is the most recent of the Commis-

sion’s annual reports discussing national

security implications of the bilateral trade

and economic relationship between the

U.S. and China.
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